
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Democratic Services, Democratic Services (01254) 380109 
Email:  memberservices@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 28 August 2019 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Thursday, 5 September 2019 at 3.00 pm, 
Qe Room, Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Jean Battle, Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Terry Hurn, Patrick McGinley, Tim O'Kane 
and Paddy Short 
 
Cooptees: Paul Barton, Bernard Dawson, Gareth Molineux and Ian Ormerod 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

2.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To submit the Minutes of the meeting of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on the 30th July 2019 for approval as a correct record. 
 
Recommended  - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

3.   People Strategy  (Pages 7 - 26) 
 
To inform the Committee of progress made against actions in the People Strategy. 
 
To introduce a new People Strategy to cover 2019-2021. 
 
To present the Annual Workforce Report (Appendix 3) 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

4.   Request for Support for the Operational Management of Council Buildings  (Pages 
27 - 30) 
 
To allow the Committee to review its recommendation to grant a one off payment of 
£30,000 to Hyndburn Arts Ltd based on additional information received from the 
company. 
 

 
 



 
 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Tuesday, 30th July, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair),  

Councillors Jean Battle (Vice Chair), Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, 
Marlene Haworth, Patrick McGinley and Tim O'Kane 
Co-optees: Paul Barton, Bernard Dawson and Ian Ormerod 
  

In Attendance: Councillor Judith Addison 
Councillor Munsif Dad, Portfolio Holder for Education, Leisure & Arts 
Councillor Miles Parkinson, Leader of the Council 
 
8 members of the Public, including: Mrs L. Allen, Mr N. Collingridge,  
Mrs G. Knight, Ms K. Whitehead, Mrs L. Wilson and one member of the 
media. 

  

 
80 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor Terry Hurn. 
 
Councillor Marlene Haworth acted as a substitute representative for Councillor Hurn. 
 
The Chair Councillor Noordad Aziz and Councillor Patrick McGinley reported a declaration 
of interest in agenda item 7, Churchfield House. The Chair had booked the venue 
previously for personal engagements and Councillor McGinley was a member of the 
volunteer committee at the house. 
 
There were no other reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

81 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on the 14th March 
2019 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

82 Appointment of Vice Chair 
 
With the meeting being the first Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 2019-
2020 Municipal year a Vice Chair was required to be appointed as this was not conducted 
at the Council AGM held in May earlier this year. 
 
Resolved - That Councillor Jean Battle be appointed Vice Chair of the  

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the Municipal 
Year 2019-2020. 

 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
 

83 Appointment of Co-optees 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to inform Members of the Committee 
of the Co-optee appointments for Overview and Scrutiny Committees during the Municipal 
Year 2019-2020 made by Council at the AGM on the 16th May 2019. 
 
Resolved - (1) That the Committee noted the following reappointments of 

Co-optees to the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 
- Honorary Alderman Paul Barton 
- Honorary Freeman Bernard Dawson 
- Honorary Alderman Ian Ormerod 

 
- (2) That the Committee noted the following re-appointment of 
Co-optees to the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee: 
- Honorary Freeman Bernard Dawson 

 
- (3) That the Committee noted the previous appointment of 
Honorary Alderman Doug Hayes as Co-optee to the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, which covers the 2019/20 Municipal year. 

 
- (4) That the Committee noted the amendment to Rule C2 of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules as set out in the 
appendix to this report. 

 
- (5) That the Committee noted the appointment of Gareth 
Molineux as new Co-optee to the Resources Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 
84 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to seek approval from Members of 
the Committee for the 2019-2020 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes and that the 
report was submitted to the next meeting of Cabinet in September 2019. 
 
The Chair added that at a recent Audit Committee meeting Members had suggested that 
better signposting of the HBC Dog Warden service was required on the Council’s website. 
Research on the subject would be conducted with a view to possible inclusion on the work 
programme should there be availability.  
 
Resolved - That the 2019-2020 Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

work programme be approved and submitted to Cabinet.  
 

85 Statutory Guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined Authorities 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to inform Members of the Committee 
of the publication of new statutory guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in local government. 
 
Councillor Tim O’ Kane stated the importance of the selection process of Members serving 
on the Overview and Scrutiny Committees to be separate from the Cabinet.  
 
Resolved - That Members of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny  

Committee noted the update. 
 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
 

86 Requests for Support for the Operational Management of Council Buildings 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to consider three individual requests 
from external organisations for financial support towards the continued operational 
management of Council buildings. 
 
Presentations were made from Gayle Knight (Hyndburn Arts Limited), Lynn Wilson 
(Churchfield House Ltd) and Nick Collingridge (Mercer House 1842). 
 
A number of questions were asked at the meeting to all three organisations following their 
presentations:- 
 

 How much money are you requesting? 

 How will this money be spent? 

 Why was this money not budgeted for? 

 Have you requested this funding from sources other than the Council? 

 What will the impact be if the Council do not provide funding? 

 When is this funding required by? 

 Is this a one off request? What plans do you have in place to ensure your financial 
sustainability? 

 How much money have you previously received from the Council since you took on 
the facility, and what was the money for? 

 Who are your current users? 

 Do you have a pricing policy for facility hire? Are you charging enough to ensure the 
sustainability of the building? 

 How much cash reserves / investments do you currently hold? (Please provide 
suitable evidence by way of Bank Statement, Letter from Bank etc) 

 How many paid staff does your organization have and what are the annual salary 
costs? 

 
A number of individual follow up questions were also put to each of the organisations 
represented at the meeting. 
 
Resolved - That Cabinet be requested to note the following  

resolutions of the Committee:- 
 
(1) That Cabinet provided urgent funding of £30,000 to Hyndburn 
Arts Ltd towards the continued operation of Oswaldtwistle Civic 
Theatre and Arts Centre:- 

    
- Cabinet was also asked to consider providing some officer 
support to Hyndburn Arts Trust in terms of financial 
management in order to minimise the risk of the shortfall in 
funding occurring again in future years.  

   
-The Committee requests that Hyndburn Arts Ltd report back to 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 12 months time. 

 
(2) That Cabinet provided urgent funding of £10,000 to  
Churchfield House Ltd to contribute towards the u 
nexpected water costs and application for charitable  
status:- 

 
- Cabinet was also asked to note that should Churchfield  

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
 

House Ltd manage to negotiate a reduction in challenging  
their water bill, the remaining balance would be returned  
to the Council. 

 
(3) That Cabinet make further enquiries to determine the  
request from Mercer House 1842, due to insufficient  
financial and other background information provided to  
the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee which was  
requested in advance of the meeting. The Committee was  
therefore unable to make a recommendation for the  
request of £5,000. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 6



 

 

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 05 September 2019 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Kirsten Burnett, Head of Policy and OD 

TITLE OF REPORT: People Strategy Update 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform the Committee of progress made against actions in the People Strategy. 
 
1.2 To introduce a new People Strategy to cover 2019-2021. 
 
1.3 To present the Annual Workforce Report (Appendix 3) 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That progress and proposed actions are noted and any suggestions for additional 

actions given to the Head of Policy and OD. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 Our current People Strategy was agreed in January 2014 and covers the period 2014-

18.  Progress against the actions identified within the strategy is reported in Appendix 
1. 

 
3.2 A revised People Strategy is attached at Appendix 2 for the period up to 2021. 
 
Learning and Development 
 
3.3 This Strategy is supported by an annual programme of OD / learning activities, which 

respond to needs identified through Performance Development Reviews and other 
corporate priorities including health and safety.  These have included the launch of an 
elearning platform “The Hyve”.  

 
3.4 The majority of the training budget is spent on service specific training and qualification 

courses, including apprenticeships. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3.



 

 

 
Apprenticeships 
 
3.6 8 employees have been studying under apprenticeships in the last financial year and 

we drew £11,453 from our Levy pot to fund these.  The total Levy paid out by the 
Council was £25.122.  The apprenticeships were: 

 

Waste 2 LGV (level 2) 
 1 Team leader (level 2) 

Parks 1 Arboriculture (level 2) 
 1 LGV (level 2) 

Accountancy 1 CIPFA (level 7) 

Planning 1 Management (level 5) 

Regen and Housing 1 Management (level 5) 

 
3.7 Further apprenticeships are underway or imminent in 2019/20 including for an existing 

member of staff in payroll and new recruits in ICT and Policy. 
 
3.8 We are required to have regard to the public sector apprenticeship target.  The target is 

for us to have apprenticeships starts each year equivalent to 2.3% of our headcount on 
the day before the start of the reporting year.  For 2019/20, our figure was 2.21%.  If 
we use FTE numbers rather than headcount, the figure would be 2.45%.   

 
Workforce Perfomance Indicators 
 
3.9 The following indicators are detailed further in our Workforce Report and will be 

published on the website to meet the requirements of the Equality Act 2010 and the 
Local Government Transparency Code 2015. 

 

 Indicator 
Actual 

2017/18 
Actual 

2018/19 

BV 11a  Top 5% of Earners: Women  
 

35.7% 38.46% 

BV 11b  Top 5% of Earners: Ethnic Minorities 0% 0% 

BV 11c  Top 5% of Earners: with a Disability 0% 0% 

BV 12  Working Days Lost Due to Sickness Absence 8.77 7.36 

BV 14  % of Early Retirements 0.36% 0.74% 

BV 15  % of Ill Health Retirements 0% 0% 

BV 16a  % of Employees with a Disability 9.56% 8% 

BV 17a  Ethnic Minority Employees 4.04% 5% 

Page 8



 

 

 
Employee Survey 
 
3.10 This has recently taken place, with an increase in overall job satisfaction to 87%.  More 

work is planned on following up on the results which will involve a range of staff. 
 
Recruitment and Retention Difficulties 
 
3.11 Some vacant posts have proved difficult to fill over the last year or more and further 

work is being done to try and address these.  The Local Government Workforce Survey 
2017/18 reports that 78% of councils are experiencing such difficulties. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable. 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

Not applicable.  Report is primarily for 
information and none of the requested 
decisions have an impact on budgets. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

None. 

Assessment of risk 
 

None. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

None. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 None. 

Page 9

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 6 
 

 
 
 

Appendix 1: People Strategy Actions and Targets 

 

 
Making Hyndburn “The Place To Work” 

Our People Strategy 2014 - 2018 

 
 

 

Our Performance Measures 

1. Achieve employee satisfaction rate of 80% (was 76% in 2014) – 
ACHIEVED 87% in 2019 

2. Retain the North West Skills Award – no longer available for renewal 
3. Retain NWEO Member Development Charter – hold Level 2 of Charter 
4. 95% of staff receiving annual PDRs – NOT YET ACHIEVED 2019/20, 

85% at 27/08/19 (95.7% in 2018/19) 

5. Sickness absence below 8 days per employee- 7.36 in 2018/19 
6. Retain the Workplace Wellbeing Award – no longer available in 

Lancs, but achieved highest level of Up & Active award via 
Hyndburn Leisure 

7. Retain the Navajo Chartermark – no longer available for renewal 
8. Retain the Two Ticks symbol, “Positive about disability” – amend to 

Disability Confident Employer in next strategy 

 

Creativity: People are engaged and motivated to give their best efforts 

a. Hold Big Thank You Awards and celebrate those 
achieving qualifications 
 

The Big Thank You event continues to be held each year and is currently being planned for 
November 2019. 

b. Promote the benefits of working for HBC and look 
for new ways to make HBC a more attractive 
workplace, especially if no cost 
 

We continue to provide a wide range of benefits, which are brought together in our Benefits Booklet.  
Includes salary sacrifice opportunities – cyclescheme, childcare vouchers, home technology and new 
AVC scheme. 
 
Further work on recent staff survey may suggest other options. 
 

c. Conduct the staff survey every 2 years to track 
staff satisfaction and feedback and act on the results 
 

Survey has just taken place.  It was 3 years since the previous survey.  Overall reported satisfaction 
was well above target at 87% and at its highest level since this started to be measured.  Work is 
planned on identifying actions to address issues raised and make further improvements. 
 

d. Maintain good working relationships with staff and 
trade unions 
 

There are several ways by which we ensure open communication with staff.  We continue to use the 
JNCC as a regular communication forum and there is also a Safety Improvement Group and Health 
and Safety Committee.  There is regular dialogue with trade union colleagues on issues as they 
arise.  On the whole, negotiation on new policies etc. works well and we usually manage to reach 
agreement, even on difficult issues. 

P
age 11



Page 2 of 6 
 

 
 
 

 

e. Nurture communications and team spirit amongst 
senior and middle managers and between teams 
 

We bring staff together for training and for working groups where relevant.  We support teams and 
managers where there are conflicts or significant changes.  Service managers meet every 6 months 
to share progress on key performance indicators. 
 

f. Communication of corporate progress and 
objectives to support employees through the current 
period of change and help build resilience 
 

Newsround items inform people of issues such as the annual budget and we continue to 
communicate via Hyndsight, Dave’s bulletin, Leader’s update etc.  Several staff survey comments 
and some work by internal audit suggest we could be more effective in this area and we are making 
plans to improve this further. 
 

Innovation:  People are productive and open to doing things differently to ensure their work contributes to the Council’s priorities 

g. Support the management of overtime costs 
through the provision of relevant information and 
advice of alternatives 
 

We agreed our approach to paying holiday pay on overtime and have dealt with outstanding claims 
for backpay. 

h. Continue to encourage and support employees to 
gain and update their functional skills, in maths, 
English and ICT 
 

This is promoted as part of the Performance Development Review and is built into some of our 
training courses.  Our e-learning package also includes functional skills. 

i. Support organisational redesign in line with 
changes to service delivery and resources available 
 

We continue to support restructures, redundancy and redeployment processes. 
 
This has involved an annual letter to all staff inviting applications for ERVR etc.  We will consider any 
applications as part of the budget setting process. 
 

j. Deliver training in skills required to identify and 
implement new ways of working to streamline 
processes, save costs and improve customer 
service, including use of new technology 
 

During the life of this strategy, we have delivered customer experience training, training for new, 
existing aspiring managers, commercial awareness and business process training.  Training takes 
place locally where system and technology changes are made within services.  HR will support 
service managers to roll out changes as they are identified.  Individual training needs are identified 
through PDRs. 
 
Supporting training bids has become much more challenging.  The training budget reduced by a 
further £1847 from 2018/19 to 2019/20.  Where possible training will be via e-learning. 
 

P
age 12



Page 3 of 6 
 

 
 
 

k. Have procedures in place to support increased 
collaborative working with partners and neighbouring 
councils 
 

The excess mileage policy was implemented in May 2014 and other policies and practices requiring 
HR input will be reviewed as necessary and from learning from others.  We continue to take part in 
secondment arrangements and other shared service models.  Where appropriate we are sharing 
training with other councils which also aids more collaborative working. 
 

l. Support staff to look for ways to generate 
increased income 
 

Heads of service and accountancy staff explore this as part of their budget planning and should 
highlight any learning and development needs through PDRs.  We try to fund courses by hosting 
training and selling places to other organisations, where appropriate. 
 

m. Consider skills, including leadership skills, 
needed for a move to more collaborative working 
and put measures in place to address 
 

This has been factored into our management development programmes.  We have shared many of 
our training courses, including management training, with other councils, to save costs and provide a 
richer learning environment.  Two of our staff are undertaking level 5 apprenticeships in management 
on a programme with 5 other district councils. 
 

n. PDRs completed within required timescale and L 
& D needs collated to inform an annual Learning and 
OD plan 
 

The return rate at the time of writing for 2019 is 85% against a target of 95%.  Heads of Service have 
been asked to ensure these are returned. 

o. Promote the Council’s coaching scheme 
 

We do this via Newsround and News in the Loos and also by matching coaches with participants on 
management development programmes.  We have partnered with Chorley to offer cross-borough 
coaching. 
 

p. Look at underlying reasons for sickness absence 
and put measures in place to address these 
 
 

Our management reports address this in detail and this is analysed by our Workplace Health 
Awareness Team.  We continue to specifically target our interventions to address the causes of 
absence.  Examples include the provision of physiotherapy / osteopathy to support staff with 
muscular-skeletal problems and offering flu vaccinations. 
 
We obtained the Up and Active award at Gold level this year in recognition of our work on health and 
wellbeing. 
 
Over the life of the strategy, we have maintained an average (when taken as a rolling 3 year figure) 
under the target of 8 days lost per employee per year. 
 P

age 13



Page 4 of 6 
 

 
 
 

Further work is planned to ensure sickness reporting is timely and accurate and that managers 
arrange prompt formal review meetings. 
 

 
 

q. Review HR policies and procedures as required to 
remain legally compliant and fit for purpose, with 
training delivered to support their use 
 

Last year we reviewed our Disciplinary Procedure and our Drug and Alcohol Policy.  Our annual 
review has identified the following to be reviewed in 2019/20, depending on the time available: 
 
Some will only require minor amendments and will not need to go through Management Team / 
consultation: 
 

 Mileage and expenses 

 Leavers’ guidance 

 Disability equality at work refresh 

 Employee handbook and Benefits Booklet refresh 

9.8 

8.4 

6.9 
6.6 

7.4 

7.9 
7.5 

6.7 

7.2 7.3 

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

3 year average 

P
age 14



Page 5 of 6 
 

 
 
 

 Equality Scheme 

 Emotional Wellbeing Handbook / Managers’ Guide 

 Domestic Abuse policy 

 Drug and Alcohol Policy 12 month review 

 Hate Crime Policy and Procedure 

 Job Re-evaluation Policy 

 Pay Policy 

 Performance Development Review 

r. Support the development of apprenticeships within 
the Borough 

We have amended our vacancy clearance process to ensure that we consider whether vacant posts 
could be converted into apprenticeships, so that we pay due regard to the new public sector 
apprenticeship duty.  We are paying the apprenticeship levy each month.  We examine all training 
needs identified through PDRs to see if these could be met through an apprenticeship. 
 
We are required to have regard to the public sector apprenticeship target.  The target is for us to 
have apprenticeships starts each year equivalent to 2.3% of our headcount on the day before the 
start of the reporting year.  For 2019/20, our figure was 2.21%.  If we use FTE numbers rather than 
headcount, the figure would be 2.45%.  We have already reported the figure well before the deadline 
of 30 September 2019.  This includes an explanation of the actions we are taking to help us progress 
towards meeting the public sector target as well as the challenges of reaching the target.  Further 
apprenticeship starts are planned or being considered for the coming year. 
 
The Council supported the Apprenticeship and Jobs Fair again this year, in Accrington Town Hall. 
 

Resilience: People are healthy, treated with integrity and supported to deal with change 

s. Ensure JE retains its integrity and supports equal 
pay 
 

There have been several instances over the last year of new or revised jobs being evaluated.  We 
will review the JE re-evaluation policy this year. 

t. Conduct an equal pay audit Elements of this are considered each year in our workforce report.  Work modelling options for the 
implementation of the 209 pay award also considered equality issues and we plan further work 
modelling variations to our pay structure. 
 

P
age 15



Page 6 of 6 
 

 
 
 

u. Administer pay and pensions according to HMRC 
and statutory and scheme requirements 
 

Payroll continue to pay accurately and on time, including to our external customers.   

v. Promote and support healthy lifestyles including 
nutrition and exercise 
 

We have held a number of activities and these are promoted via Hyndsight etc. 

w. Continue to ensure that customer first analyses 
are used where appropriate to assess the equality 
impact of decisions and policies 
 

These are being completed as a matter of course and the pre-approval process for reports to Council 
/ Cabinet includes checking this. 

x. Produce workforce analyses in line with legal 
requirements and use to identify ways of ensuring 
fairness and moving to a workforce which better 
represents the community of Hyndburn 
 

The up to date workforce report is included. 

 

P
age 16



 

 

 

Our People Strategy 2019 – 2021 
 

Making Hyndburn “The Place to Work” 
 

Supporting the Council’s vision of Driving Growth and Prosperity in Hyndburn 
HR Performance Measures 

1. Maintain employee satisfaction rate at or above 80% 
2. 95% of staff receiving annual PDRs  
3. Average sickness absence below 8 days per employee 

4. Retain Up and Active Workplace Health accreditation at 
Gold level 

5. Retain Disability Confident accreditation 
6. Fulfil our requirements for the Public Sector Apprenticeship 

target 

Leadership: ensure people are engaged and 
motivated to give their best efforts 

Innovation:  People are productive and open 
to doing things differently to ensure their work 
contributes to the Council’s priorities 

Resilience: People are healthy, treated with 
integrity and supported to deal with change 

 
a. Communicate corporate strategy across all 

levels of the Council 
b. Hold leaders accountable for progress via 

regular reporting against agreed performance 
indicators 

c. Arrange annual Big Thank You Awards and 
celebrate successes as they occur 

d. Promote the benefits of working for HBC and 
look for new ways to make HBC a more 
attractive workplace, especially if no cost 

e. Conduct the staff survey every 2 years to track 
staff satisfaction and feedback and act on the 
results 

f. Maintain good working relationships with staff 
and trade unions 

g. Nurture communications and team spirit 
amongst senior and middle managers and 
between teams 
 

 
h. Continue to encourage and support 

employees to gain and update their technical, 
management and leadership, interpersonal 
and functional skills 

i. Support organisational restructuring and 
change 

j. PDRs completed within required timescale 
and L & D needs collated to inform training 
delivery 

k. Promote the Council’s coaching scheme 
l. Support employee wellbeing and address 

underlying causes of sickness absence 
m. Review HR policies and procedures as 

required to remain legally compliant and fit 
for purpose, with training delivered to support 
their use 

n. Support the development of apprenticeships 
within the Borough and demonstrate that we 
are having regard to the public sector 
apprenticeship target 

 
o. Ensure JE retains its integrity and 

supports equal pay 
p. Administer pay and pensions according to 

HMRC and statutory and scheme 
requirements 

q. Promote and support healthy lifestyles 
including nutrition and exercise 

r. Continue to ensure that customer first 
analyses are used where appropriate to 
assess the equality impact of decisions 
and policies 

s. Produce workforce analyses in line with 
legal requirements and use to identify 
ways of ensuring fairness and moving to a 
workforce which better represents the 
community of Hyndburn 

 

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Workforce Report 
31 March 2019 

 

1. Introduction 
 
This annual report gives information about the people we have recruited, the composition of the 
workforce, the use of discipline, grievance and other procedures, and information about 
employees who leave the authority. 
 

 
2. Summary  
 

 At 31 March 2019 Hyndburn Borough Council employed 270 employees (FTE 244.64), of 
which were 198 (73%) full time and 72 (27%) part time.  Of the 270 employees, 130 
(48%) were female and 140 (52%) male. 

 We have an ageing workforce: 78% of the workforce is over 40 years old, and 49% over 
50 – slightly higher than last year.  

 7.7% of employees are recorded as having a disability – a decrease from last year 
(9.56%). 

 4.81% of employees are from Black and Minority Ethnic (BAME) groups – this is an 
increase of over 1% from last year. 

 The equality target groups remain under-represented in the top 5% of earners at the 
council, with 38.46% being female – up from 35.7% last year.  No employee at this level 
is BAME or has a disability. 

 Staff turnover for 2018/19 is 10% compared to 12.08% for the previous year.  The LGA 
reports the median rate for local government as 13.4%. 

 

 
3. Recruitment 
 
30 vacancies were advertised during this period and 159 people applied.  26 people have been 
appointed.  The success rates at each stage of the selection process are shown below, by 
equality group. 
 
3.1 Gender 
 

Gender 
Applied 
(%) 

Short listed 
(%) 

Appointed 
(%) 

Male 80 (50) 33 (49) 14 (54) 

Female 76 (48) 34 (51) 12 (46) 

No 
information 
given 

3 (2) 0 0 

Total 159 67 26 

 
3.2 Ethnicity 
 

Ethnicity Applied (%) Shortlisted (%) Appointed (%) 

White- British 123 (77) 54 (81) 24 (92) 

White- Irish 0 0 0 

Page 19



 2 

White- Other 3(2) 0 0 

Black or Black British – Caribbean 2(1) 2(3) 0 

Black or Black British – African 1(0.81) 0 0 

Black or Black British – Other 
0 

0 0 

Asian or Asian British – Indian 9(5.5) 4(6) 2(8) 

Asian or Asian British - Pakistani 16(10) 7(10) 0 

Asian or Asian British – Kashmiri 1(0.81) 0 0 

Asian or Asian British - Bangladeshi 0 0 0 

Mixed Race - White/ Black Caribbean 0 0 0 

Mixed Race - White/ Black African 0 0 0 

Mixed Race - White/ Indian 0 0 0 

Mixed Race - White/ Pakistani 1(0.81) 0 0 

Chinese 1(0.81) 0 0 

Other 0 0 0 

Prefer not to answer 2(1.26)   

No information given    

Total 159 67 26 

 
3.3 Disability 
 

Disability Status Applied (%) Short listed (%) Appointed (%) 

Not disabled 102(64) 48(71.5) 16(62) 

Disabled 38(24) 14(21) 6(23) 

Prefer not to answer 4(2.5) 2(3) 1(4) 

No information given 15(9.5) 3(4.5) 3(11) 

Total 159 67 26 

 
3.4 Age 
 

Age Applied (%) Short Listed (%) Appointed (%) 

16-19 4 (2) 1(2) 0 

20-29 39(24) 9(13) 1(4) 

30-39 37(23) 14(21) 8(30) 

40-49 40(25) 19(28) 5(19) 

50-59 25(18) 16(23) 7(27) 

60+ 6(4) 6(9) 1(4) 

Prefer not to 
answer 

4(2) 1(2) 0 

No information 
given 

4(2) 1(2) 4(16) 

Total 159 67 26 

 

Page 20



 3 

3.5 Sexual Orientation 
 

Sexual 
Orientation 

Applied (%) Short Listed (%) Appointed (%) 

Heterosexual 146(92) 65(97) 25(96) 

Bisexual 2(1) 1(1.5) 0 

Homosexual 1(0.5) 1(1.5) 0 

Prefer not to 
answer 

6(4) 0 0 

No information 
given 

1(0.5) 0 1(4) 

Total 159 67 26 

 
3.6 Religion or Belief 
 

Religion Applied (%) Short Listed (%) Appointed (%) 

Christian 79(50) 34(50) 13(50) 

Buddhist 1(0.63) 0 0 

Hindu 1(0.63) 1(2) 0 

Rastafarian 0 0 0 

Muslim 21(13.20) 9(13.5) 1(4) 

No Religious 
Affiliation 

6(4) 6(9) 5(19) 

Sikh 1(0.63) 0 0 

Other 21(13) 7(10.5) 2(8) 

Jewish 0 0 0 

Prefer not to 
answer 

21(13) 10(15) 3(12) 

No information 
given 

8(5) 0 2(7) 

Total 159 67 26 

 

 
4. Our Workforce 
 
At 31 March 2019, the Council employed 270 people (FTE 244.64) 
 
The headcount of 270 is made up of 198 full time and 72 part time employees.  265 are on 
permanent employment contracts and 5 are on a temporary contract.  
 
4.1 Employee Profile 
 
(i) Gender 
 
We employed 130 females (48%) and 140 males (52%). 
 
The table below shows the gender breakdown for part-time employees and those on 
Management Grades, which we have defined as salary spinal column point 26 and above. 

Page 21



 4 

 

 Total 
Staff 

Male  
(%) 

Female 
(%) 

P/T 
Male 
(%)  

P/T 
Female 
(%) 

Male staff in 
Management 
grades (%) 

Female staff in 
Management 
grades(%) 

Total 
Workforce 

270 140 
(52%) 

130 
(48%) 

8(3%) 58 
(23.70%) 

40 (50%) 40 (50%) 

 
These figures show that, although women are under-represented in the top 5% of earners (an 
old BVPI measurement which we continue to report on, see S5.2 below), the gender split in 
what we class as management grades is exactly equal and reasonably close to mirroring the 
wider staff group.  
 
(ii) Ethnicity 
 
The actual percentage of BME employees overall on 31st March 2019 is 5.19%.  This is lower 
than the BME population within the district of 12.3% (2011 Census). 
 
People from minority ethnic communities are not represented in senior management.  There 
have been no new recruits at this level over the last year. 
 
(ii) Sexual orientation 
 
Workforce records as at 31st March 2019 show the following information on sexual orientation. 
 

Heterosexual  52%   

Bisexual  0% 

Gay Male 0.5%   

Lesbian 0.5 %   

Prefer not to answer  10%   

No Response 37%    

 
(iv) Age 
 
The age profile for employees is shown below.   
 

Age Council 
 
 

%(Employees) 

16-19 0 

20-29 5 (14) 

30-39 17 (45) 

40-49 26 (71) 

50-59 39 (104) 

60+ 13(36) 

 
It can be seen from the above table that most of the workforce 78% is over 40 with 52% over 50 
and very low numbers in the lower age groups. 
 
The age profile for Hyndburn BC generally reflects the profile for local government where there 
is a tendency to have a significant proportion of staff aged over fifty with long service.   

Page 22



 5 

 
(v) Religion and belief 
 
Staffing records as at 31st March 2019 provided the results as shown in the table below.   
 

 
Hyndburn residents (2011 
census data where available) Council Workforce 

 % % 

Christian 66.4 47 

Buddhist 0.2  

Hindu 0.1  

Jewish   

Muslim 10.3 1 

Sikh   

Any other 
religion 6.3 3 

No religion 16.7  

Religion not 
stated  49 

 
(vi) Disability 
 
8% of employees declare themselves as having a disability compared with 9.56% for 31 March 
2018. 
 

 
5. Pay  
 
The percentage of women in the top 5% of earners is 38.46%. (For shire districts nationally, the 
median was 38.5% for 2017/181.) 
No employees in the top 5% of earners have a disability.  (Shire districts national median: 0%) 
We have no BME employees among our top earners.  (Shire districts national median: 0.3%) 
 
5.1 Ethnicity of Management Grades – Key Statistics 
 
White & White Other representation in management grades = 100 %  
BME representation in the management grades = 0% 
 
5.2 Equality Workforce profile by pay bands as at 31st March 2019. 
 

Salary Band Total BME Disability Female Average Age 

Chief Officer/Director 10 0 0 3 53 

Scp 41-44  4 0 0 3 50.5 

Scp 26-39   66 3 6 34 49.74 

Scp 7-25 162 11 12 68 46.70 

Scp 1-6 28 0 3 22 53.32 

 

                                                 
1
 https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/publication%20-

%20Local%20Government%20Workforce%20Survey%202017-18.pdf 

Page 23



 6 

5.3 Gender Pay Gap  
 
This is reported in the annual pay policy and up to date figures are published on the Council’s 
website in line with the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017. 
https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/gender-pay-gap-statement/ 
 

 
6. Disciplinary and Grievance Cases 
 
These are recorded by gender, ethnicity and disability. 
 
(i) Gender 
 

  Disciplinary Harassment Grievance *Sickness Performance Qualification 

Male 12 1 0 46 0 0 

Female 0 0 1 32 0 0 

 
(ii) Ethnicity 
 

  Disciplinary Harassment Grievance * Sickness 
 
Performance 

 
Qualification 

White 12 1 1 76 0 0 

BME 0 0 0 2 0 0 

Refused 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 
(iii) Disability 
 

  Disciplinary Harassment Grievance *Sickness Performance Qualification 

Disabled 1 0 0 5 0 0 

Not Disabled  11 1 1 73 0 0 

 
*Formal Attendance Review Meetings outcomes - 52 Formal Attendance Review Meetings were 
held with 42 employees who triggered under the Attendance Management Procedure.   2 Final 
Improvement notices were issued, 18 First Improvement notices and 32 meetings concluded 
with no action.  In addition 27 welfare meetings were held. 
 

 
7. Leaving the Council 
 
7.1 Turnover 
 
Turnover for 2018/2019 was 10% with 27 leavers overall.  (The median rate for local 
government in 2017/18 was 13.4%2.)  The following table breaks this down by service. 
 

Department 
No. of 

Leavers 
Reasons for Leaving 

% Turnover within 
Council 

Accountancy 1 1xVR 3.5 

Audit & Investigations    

                                                 
2
 https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/publication%20-

%20Local%20Government%20Workforce%20Survey%202017-18.pdf 

Page 24

https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/gender-pay-gap-statement/


 7 

Democratic Services    

Customer Services & Benefits 3 2xVR, 1xDI 10 

Chief Executives Office    

Environmental Health    

Finance  - IT 2 1xVR, 1xRI 7 

Human Resources    

Legal Services /Licensing 2 1xVR, 1xRI 7 

Parks & Cemeteries    

Pest Control 1 1xVR 3.5 

Member & Civic 1 1xER 3.5 

Planning 1 1xVR 3.5 

Policy, Performance & 
Partnership 

1 1xVR 3.5 

Regeneration & Housing 5 1xRI. 2xDI, 2xVR 18.5 

Waste Services 10 1xER, 5xVR, 3xDI, 1xRI 34 

 
KEY:  VR – Voluntary Resignation   DS – Death in Service 
 RI – Retirement (Age 65+)    DI – Dismissal 
 
 FI – End of Temporary Contract   RE - Redundancy 
 ERVR – Early Retirement/Voluntary Redundancy  MA- Mutual Agreement 
 IH – Ill Health Retirement    TT – Tupe Transfer 
 Vol Red – Voluntary Redundancy only 
 

 
Equality target group 
 

 
Age 
Bands 

 
No. of Leavers 

 
% of Leavers  

BAME  1 4 

Disability  6 22 

Gender – female  6 22 

Age 16-19 0 0 

20-29 2 7 

30-39 7 26 

40-49 3 11 

50-59 10 37 

60+ 5 19 

 
7.2 Reasons for leaving 
 
The percentage of employees retiring early in 2018/19 was 0.74 %.   
 

 
 Reason 
 

 
Leavers  

 
% of Leavers 

Dismissal (DI) 6 22 

Death in Service (DS) 0 0 

Early Retirement / Voluntary Redundancy 
(ERVR) 

2 7 

Retirement 65+ (RI) 4 15 

Efficiency of Service/Redundancy (ES/RE) 0 0 

End of Temporary Contract (FI) 0 3 

Page 25



 8 

Mutual Agreement (MA) 0 0 

Ill Health Retirement(IH) 0 0 

TUPE Transfer (TT) 0 0 

Voluntary Resignation (VR) 15 56 

Redundancy (C – Compulsory) (V – Voluntary) 0 0 

 
 

8. Trade Unions 
 
8.1 The Council works with the Unison, GMB and Unite unions. 
 
8.2 The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 came into 

force on 1 April 2017, which put in place the provisions in the Trade Union Act 2016 
requiring relevant public sector employers to publish specified information related to 
facility time provided to trade union officials.  Under the Regulations, the relevant 
information must be published by 31 July 2018, in respect of the period 1 April 2017 to 31 
March 2018.  

 
8.3 This information is published on the Council’s website: 

https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/trade-union-facility-time-
publication-requirements-regulations-2017/. 

Page 26

https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/trade-union-facility-time-publication-requirements-regulations-2017/
https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/trade-union-facility-time-publication-requirements-regulations-2017/


 

 

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 05 September 2019 

PORTFOLIO: Options  

REPORT AUTHOR: Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Request for Support for the Operational Management 
of Council Buildings 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To allow the Committee to review its recommendation to grant a one off payment of 

£30,000 to Hyndburn Arts Ltd based on additional information received from the 
company. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Committee considers the information provided and makes recommendations 

to Cabinet accordingly.  
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1  At its meeting on 30th July 2019, the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

considered the item “Requests for Support for the Operational Management of Council 
Buildings”. 

 
3.2 One of the requests considered at the meeting was from Hyndburn Arts Ltd. This 

particular request was for £30,000 to cover the operational management of 
Oswaldtwistle Civic Theatre and Arts Centre. 

 
3.3 It was reported that the shortfall in funding had been caused by several factors all 

happening within a short space in time including unforeseen cancellations of several 
shows. 

 
3.4 After consideration of the report and responses to questions, the Committee made the 

following recommendations: 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4.



 

 

 
 That Cabinet provide urgent funding of £30,000 to Hyndburn Arts Ltd towards the 

continued operation of Oswaldtwistle Civic Theatre and Arts Centre:- 
 

- Cabinet is also asked to consider providing some officer support to Hyndburn Arts 
Trust in terms of financial management in order to minimise the risk of the shortfall in 
funding occurring again in future years. 

 
-The Committee requests that Hyndburn Arts Ltd report back to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee in 12 months time. 

 
3.5 Since this meeting, the Chair of the Committee has received additional information 

from Hyndburn Arts Ltd and chosen to bring the item back to Scrutiny for further 
discussion. 

 
3.6 It is the intention that as much of this item as is possible will take place in Part A 

of the agenda (Open to public and press). However, should at any time during 
the meeting the Committee wish to discuss information which may be deemed 
commercially sensitive, there is the opportunity to move the item into part B 
(Exclusion of the public and press) of the agenda. If this is the case, the 
Committee would move back into open forum when reaching a decision and 
formulating its recommendations. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 After further review of additional information, the Committee may choose to 

keep their original recommendation  
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Not applicable 
 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

Although the Committee cannot make a 
decision on funding, should the 
recommendation be that Cabinet supports the 
request, this will have a financial impact on 
the Council if the Cabinet chooses to accept 
such recommendation. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

Not applicable 

Assessment of risk 
 

Not applicable 

Page 28



 

 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

Not applicable  

 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
 
7.1 Agenda, reports and minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

meeting on 30th July 2019 
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=2440&Ver
=4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=2440&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=2440&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of Last Meeting
	Minutes

	3. People Strategy
	appendix 1 - people strategy updates scrutiny
	appendix 2 - People Strategy 2019-2022
	appendix 3 - Workforce Report 31.3.19

	4. Request for Support for the Operational Management of Council Buildings

